
Chester County Council Meeting 

1 | P a g e  
 

R. Carlisle Roddey Government Building 
1476 J A Cochran Bypass | Chester, SC 29706 

Tuesday, September 16, 2024 | 6:00 PM 

AGENDA 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND INVOCATION 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

a) September 3, 2024 Council Meeting Minutes 

 

4. CITIZEN’S COMMENTS 

 

5. PUBLIC HEARING 

 

6. ORDINANCES | RESOLUTIONS | PROCLAMATIONS  

a) 2nd Reading of Ordinance 2024-14  

An ordinance amending Ordinance 2022-10, which amended Ordinance No. 2021-16, to 

provide for the designation and expenditure of unallocated ARPA funds; and providing 

for other related matters. 
 

b) 1st Reading of Ordinance 2024-15  

An ordinance to adopt various international and standard codes relating to inspection 

activities of Chester County, South Carolina and enforcement of building provisions as 

provided in the codes. 
 

c) Resolution 2024-10 

A resolution to authorize Chester County, by Chester County Council, to sell personal 

property of the Sheriff’s Office, Rural Fire, and Animal Control identified herein upon 

such terms and conditions as described. 
 

d) Proclamation honoring Collin Roberts and proclaiming September 2024 as Childhood 

Cancer Awareness Month 

 

7. ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT 

 



 

2 | P a g e  
 

 

8. OLD BUSINESS 

 

a) 3rd Reading of CCMA24-11 Timothy McWatters request a portion of (.566 acres) Tax Map 

#154-00-00-007-000 located at 3580 Catawba River Road, Fort Lawn, SC 29714 to be 

rezoned from Agricultural District (AG) to Rural Two District (R2). The Planning 

Commission voted 5-0 to approve.  

 

9. NEW BUSINESS 

 

a) Richburg EMS Update 

John Faulkner, EMS Director 

 

10. BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS 
 

a) Olde English District Resignation  

Councilman Mike Vaughn, District 2 
 

11. EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

a) Discussion of matters relating to the proposed location, expansion, or the provision of 

services encouraging location or expansion of industries or other businesses in the area 

served by the public body – Project P2106 

 

b) Discussion of matters relating to the proposed location, expansion, or the provision of 

services encouraging location or expansion of industries or other businesses in the area 

served by the public body – Project P2354 

 

c) Discussion of matters relating to the proposed location, expansion, or the provision of 

services encouraging location or expansion of industries or other businesses in the area 

served by the public body – Project P2443 

  

d) Discussion of matters relating to the proposed location, expansion, or the provision of 

services encouraging location or expansion of industries or other businesses in the area 

served by the public body – Project P2459 

  

e) Discussion of matters relating to the proposed location, expansion, or the provision of 

services encouraging location or expansion of industries or other businesses in the area 

served by the public body – Project P2462 

 

f) Discussion of matters relating to the proposed location, expansion, or the provision of 

services encouraging location or expansion of industries or other businesses in the area 

served by the public body – Project P2463  



 

3 | P a g e  
 

 

12. ACTIONS FOLLOWING EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 

a) Action taken regarding Project P2106 
 

b) Action taken regarding Project P2354 
 

c) Action taken regarding Project P2443 
 

d) Action taken regarding Project P2459 
 

e) Action taken regarding Project P2462 
 

f) Action taken regarding Project P2463 

 
 

13.  COUNCIL COMMENTS 

 

 

14. ADJOURN  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

Pursuant to the Freedom of Information Act, the Chester News & Reporter, The Herald in Rock Hill, SC, WSOC-TV, Channel 9 Eyewitness News, the Mfg. Housing Institute of SC, WRHI Radio Station, C&N2 News, WCNC News and Capitol 
Consultants were notified, and a notice was posted on the bulletin board at the Chester County Government Building 24 hours prior to the meeting.  

 

Guidelines for Addressing Council Citizens Comments: Each citizen will be 
limited to three minutes.  

 Public Hearings:  
Each speaker will be limited to three minutes.    

 When introduced:  
Approach the podium, state your name and address.  
Speak loudly and clearly making sure that the microphone is not obstructed.  
Do not address the audience – direct all comments to Council.  
Do not approach the Council table unless directed.  

 Anyone addressing Council will be called out of order if you:  
Use profanity.  
Stray from the subject.  
Make comments personally attacking an individual member of Council.  

  



Chester County Council Meeting 

1 | P a g e  
 

R. Carlisle Roddey Government Building 
1476 J A Cochran Bypass | Chester, SC 29706 

Tuesday, September 3, 2024 | 6:00 PM 

MINUTES 
Present: Chairman Joe Branham, Vice Chairman Pete Wilson, Councilman William Killian, Councilman Mike 
Vaughn, Councilman Corey Guy, Councilman John Agee, Councilwoman Erin Mosley, County Administrator 
Brian Hester, County Attorney Nicole Workman 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
Chairman Branham called the meeting to order at 6:02pm. 
 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND INVOCATION 
The allegiance was recited, and Councilman Guy gave the invocation. 
 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

a) August 19, 2024 Council Meeting Minutes 
Councilwoman Mosley motioned to approve, second by Councilman Killian. Vote 7-0 to approve. 
 

4. CITIZEN’S COMMENTS 

 

5. PUBLIC HEARING 

 

6. ORDINANCES | RESOLUTIONS | PROCLAMATIONS  

a) 1st Reading of Ordinance 2024-14 – TITLE ONLY 
Amending ordinance 2022-10, which amended ordinance no. 2021-16, to provide for the 

designation and expenditure of unallocated ARPA funds; and providing for other related 

matters. 
Councilman Killian motioned to approve, second by Vice Chairman Killian. Vote 7-0 to approve. 
 

7. ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT 
County Administrator Brian Hester introduced Corbin Dawson as the new Network Administrator for the IT 
Department. Mr. Hester informed Council that Mr. Dawson previously worked for Chester County EMS for 
four years and has a background in biology and science. Administrator Hester announced the birth of 

Sutton Ray Oliver to his assistant Kalli Oliver and her husband Matt. Mr. Hester asked to keep Project 
Manager Harold Hayes in prayers due to a death in the family. 

 
 



 

2 | P a g e  
 

8. OLD BUSINESS 
 

a) From Chester County Transportation Committee Meeting: 

1. Recommendation of roads to be paved for 2025 using Annual C-Funds 
2. Recommendation of roads to be paved for 2025 using One-time C-Funds 

Councilman Vaughn motioned to approve, second by Councilwoman Mosley. Vote 7-0 to approve. 

b) 2nd Reading of CCMA24-11 Timothy McWatters request a portion of (.566 acres) Tax Map 

#154-00-00-007-000 located at 3580 Catawba River Road, Fort Lawn, SC 29714 to be 

rezoned from Agricultural District (AG) to Rural Two District (R2). The Planning 

Commission voted 5-0 to approve. 
Councilman Agee motioned to approve, second by Councilwoman Mosley. Vote 7-0 to approve. 

 

9. NEW BUSINESS 

 

a) Olde English District Board: A-Tax Funding Update 
Jenny Parrish, Olde English District  
Ms. Jenny Parrish presented an update on the Olde English District, also known as OED, to Council. 

She also commended our PRT Team and the great working relationship she has with them. Ms. 

Parrish informed Council that the OED launched a new website in March of this year focusing on 

storytelling and itineraries resulting in a 252% increase in overall site sessions driven by paid 
media. Ms. Parrish stated that due to the marketing tactics with the website and ads, it has 
boosted awareness of the Olde English District. She informed Council of the proposed A-Tax 

funding budget for marketing and how greatly this would benefit our tourism.  
 

b) Parks, Recreation, and Tourism Department Update 

Britt Stoudenmire, PRT Director 
Amy Bender, Tourism Associate, expressed her thankfulness of the partnership with Olde English 
District and how invaluable their resources and experience has been. Mrs. Bender informed 

Council that the funds have been invaluable and helped launch tourism in Chester County. 

Associate Bender informed Council that since the launch of the In Chester County website there has 

been over 18,000 views and the tourism fair brought over 400 visitors and lots of vendors. Director 
Stoudenmire informed Council of ongoing and upcoming projects to promote tourism in Chester 

County. Mr. Stoudenmire informed Council that so far this year, they have booked 78% of what was 
done last year and only being 2 months into the fiscal year.  
 

10. BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS 
 

a) Catawba Mental Health Board Reappointment 

Erin Mosley, Council Member At-Large 
Councilwoman Mosley motioned to reappoint Melanie Saxon to the Catawba Mental Health Board, 
second by Councilman Guy. Vote 7-0 to reappoint. 

 

 
 
 



 

3 | P a g e  
 

b) Rural Fire Commission Resignation and Appointment 
Corey Guy, District 5 
Councilman Guy announced the resignation of J.P. McNeil due to accepting a position with Chester 

County as the Deputy Director of Fire Services. 
Councilman Guy motioned to appoint Ms. Nettie Archie to the Rural Fire Commission, second by 

Councilman Agee. Vote 7-0 to approve. 
 

11. EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

 
12. ACTIONS FOLLOWING EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 
 

13.  COUNCIL COMMENTS 

Councilman Vaughn announced the upcoming Catawba Riverkeeper Foundation’s Annual River Sweep on 

October 5th. He stated they need volunteers with boats to help clean a big mess of plastic and that 
volunteers can sign up on the website.  

Chairman Branham congratulated Kalli Oliver and family on the birth of their baby boy. 

14. ADJOURN  

 
Councilwoman Mosley motioned to adjourn, second by Councilman Guy. Vote 7-0 to adjourn. 
 

7:02pm 

Kristie Donaldson 

Clerk to County Council 

 

 



CHESTER COUNTY ORDINANCE NO. 2024-14 

AMENDING ORDINANCE 2022-10, WHICH AMENDED ORDINANCE NO. 2021-
16, TO PRVOIDE FOR THE DESIGNATION AND EXPENDITURE OF 
UNALLOACTED ARPA FUNDS; AND PROVIDING FOR OTHER RELATED 
MATTERS. 

WHEREAS, Chester County has been allocated $6,253,525.00 according to the American Recovery Plan Act of 2021 
(“ARPA Funds”); 

WHEREAS, the County Council enacted Ordinance No. 2021-16, which provided for the expenditure of the ARPA 
Funds; 

WHEREAS, the County Council enacted Ordinance No. 2022-10, which amended Ordinance No. 2021-16, to 
provide for amendments to the expenditure of the ARPA Funds; 

WHEREAS, the County Council desires, by this Ordinance, to amend the list of projects and amounts funded with 
the ARPA Funds; 

WHEREAS, the County intends to expend the ARPA Funds for various County projects in particular amounts and 
in particular priorities as set out in this Ordinance; and 

WHEREAS, by this Ordinance, the County intends to allocate all of the ARPA Funds and authorize such 
expenditures. 

NOW, THEREFORE Chester County, South Carolina, ordains as follows: 

Section 1. Authorization. In the following priority, the County authorizes the expenditure of (a) approximately 
$1,040,000 for the Fort Lawn Sewer project to support (i) Project Magma, as contemplated by the Memorandum of 
Understanding, between Chester County and the Town of Fort Lawn, which is dated on or about November 1, 2021, and 
(ii) other development in that region of the County, (b) approximately $590,000 for premium pay for County employees; 
(c) approximately $2,030,000 to support the 16th project on the County’s 2020 capital project sales and use tax referendum: 
Countywide Emergency Communications Project; (d) approximately $1,630,000 for County Fire Office-related facilities 
and equipment, (e) approximately $590,000 for Sheriff’s Office facilities and equipment, (f) approximately $175,000 for 
County facilities and equipment, and (g) approximately $255,000 for professional services. 

The County Administrator is authorized to reallocate funds among the projects listed above as the County 
Administrator, in his discretion, may determine to provide completion of the projects. If any ARPA Funds remain available 
following completion of the projects, then the County Administrator may use the remaining funds to offset additional, 
other previously approved capital projects as the County Administrator, in his discretion, may determine so long as the 
funding for the previously approved capital projects does not constitute, in aggregate, more than 5% of the County’s total 
allocation of ARPA Funds. 

Section 2. General Repealer. Any prior ordinance, resolution, or order, the terms of which conflict with this 
Ordinance, is, only to the extent of that conflict, repealed. 

Section 3. Effective Date. This Ordinance is effective after its public hearing and third reading. 

[ONE SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS] 
[REMAINDER OF PAGE SUBSTANTIVELY BLANK] 

  



CHESTER COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 

        
Chairman, Chester County Council 

[SEAL] 
ATTEST: 

       
Clerk to Council, Chester County Council 

First Reading:  September 3, 2024 
Second Reading:  September 16, 2024 
Public Hearing:  October 7, 2024 
Third Reading:  October 7, 2024 



1 

 

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA )   Ordinance No. 2024-15 

     )   

     ) 

COUNTY OF CHESTER  ) 

  

 

 

AN ORDINANCE TO ADOPT VARIOUS INTERNATIONAL AND STANDARD CODES 

RELATING TO INSPECTION ACTIVITIES OF CHESTER COUNTY, SOUTH 

CAROLINA AND ENFORCEMENT OF BUILDING PROVISIONS AS PROVIDED IN 

THE CODES. 

 

WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 6-9-10 of the South Carolina Code of laws, 1976, as 

Amended, Chester County acknowledges its responsibility to enforce the editions of the 

Building, Residential, Fire, Plumbing, Mechanical, Fuel Gas and Energy Conservation Codes, as 

published by the International Code Council and the edition of the National Electrical Code, as 

published by the National Fire Protection Association and as duly adopted by the South Carolina 

Building Codes Council.  

 

WHEREAS, the adoption of these codes is done to facilitate proper inspection activities by 

Chester County, South Carolina relating to construction, livability, sanitation, erection, energy 

efficiency, installation of equipment, alteration, repair, occupancy, classification or removal of a 

structures and other maintenance of buildings within Chester County, South Carolina and 

relating to public safety, health and general welfare; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY CHESTER COUNTY COUNCIL that the 

following codes are hereby adopted by reference as though they were copied herein fully: 

 

2021 International Property Maintenance Code 

2021 International Swimming Pool & Spa Code 

2021 International Existing Building Code 

 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED that within said codes, when reference is made to duties of a 

certain official named therein, the designated official of Chester County, South Carolina, who 

has duties corresponding to those named official in said code shall be deemed to be the 

responsible official insofar as enforcing the provisions of said code are concerned. 

 

This ordinance shall take effect upon adoption by the Chester County Council on the date of the 

final reading approval. 

 

Adopted this 16th day of September 2024. 

 

CHESTER COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 

 

 _________________________________ 

Chairman, Chester County Council 



2 

 

 

[SEAL] 

 

Attest: 

 

By: ________________________ 

Clerk to County Council 

Chester County, South Carolina 

 

First Reading:  September 16, 2024 

Second Reading: October 7, 2024  

Public Hearing: October 21, 2024 

Third Reading: October 21, 2024 

 



SOUTH CAROLINA  ) RESOLUTION 2024-10 OF  

     ) CHESTER COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 

CHESTER COUNTY  )    

 

AUTHORIZING THE TRANSFER OF CERTAIN PERSONAL PROPERTY; AND 

PROVIDING FOR OTHER RELATED MATTERS. 

 

 

WHEREAS, South Carolina Code Annotated section 4-9-30(2) authorizes Chester County 

(“County”) to sell or otherwise dispose of personal property; and  

WHEREAS, the County Council for Chester County, as the County’s governing body has 

determined that it is in the best interest of the County and its citizens to sell, by auction or other 

similar method, those items of personal property as are listed in Exhibit A (collectively, 

“Personal Property”), which is attached to and incorporated in this Resolution by reference; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL THAT THE 

COUNTY AUTHORIZED THE SALE, BY AUCTION OF OTHER SIMILAR METHOD, 

THE PERSONAL PROPERTY.  

 And, it is further resolved that the County Administrator, and/or his designee (each, an 

“Authorized Official”), is authorized (a) to prepare, the form of any reasonably necessary and 

prudent transfer documents that are customarily used for similar transactions in this State, and 

(b) to execute, attest, and deliver those documents that may be reasonably necessary and prudent 

to consummate the Personal Property’s transfer. 

RESOLVED: September 16, 2024   

      CHESTER COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 

 

       ___________________________________ 

       Joe Branham 

       Chairman, County Council 

[SEAL] 

Attest: 

 

______________________________ 
Kristie Donaldson 

Clerk to County Council 
[ONE EXHIBIT FOLLOWS] 



EXHIBIT A 

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION 

 

Department 

Vehicle 

Number Make/Model Tag Vin/Serial Number Mileage 
Sheriff’s Office 97 2013 Dodge 

Journey 

LGU169 3C4PDCBB9DT721803 141654 

Rural Fire 110 International 

Navistar/4900 4x2 

N/A 1HTSDPCR7PH483209 94,888 

Animal Control 143 2010 Chevy Tahoe CG85798 1GNMCAE02AR263571 169064 

 



STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA  ) 

      )   PROCLAMATION 

CHESTER COUNTY   ) 

 

 

 

A PROCLAMATION HONORING COLLIN ROBERTS AND PROCLAIMING 

SEPTEMBER 2024 AS CHILDHOOD CANCER AWARENESS MONTH 

 

 

WHEREAS, childhood cancer is the leading cause of death by disease in children; 

 

WHEREAS,  1 in 285 children in the United States will be diagnosed by their 20th birthday;  

 

WHEREAS,  46 children per day or 16,790 children per year are diagnosed with cancer in the 

United States;  

 

WHEREAS,  the average age of diagnosis is 6 years old;   

 

WHEREAS, 80% of childhood cancer patients are diagnosed late and with metastatic disease; 

 

WHEREAS, on average there’s been a 0.6 percent increase in incidence per year since the mid 

1970’s resulting in overall incidence increase of 24% over the last 40 years; 

 

WHEREAS, two-thirds of childhood cancer patients will have chronic health conditions as a 

result of their treatment toxicity, with one quarter being classified as severe to 

life-threatening; 

 

WHEREAS, approximately one half of childhood cancer families rate the associated financial 

burden due to out-of-pocket expenses as considerable to severe; 

 

WHEREAS,  in the last 30 years only six new drugs were approved by the FDA to specifically 

treat childhood cancer; 

 

WHEREAS,  too many children are affected by this deadly disease and more must be done to 

raise awareness and find a cure; 

 

WHEREAS, Collin Roberts, a member of the Chester Community and son of Chester County 

employee Joe Roberts, bravely battled ependymoma from age 2 to his passing at 

15 years of age;  

 

WHEREAS,  childhood cancer is impacting children in the Chester County community, more 

awareness must be focused on the issues, research and awareness surrounding this 

disease.     

 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Joe Branham, Chairman on behalf of the Chester County Council, in 

memory of Collin Roberts and others battling childhood cancer do hereby 

proclaim September 2024 as Childhood Cancer Awareness Month. I encourage all 



citizens to observe Childhood Cancer Awareness Month and support this cause 

that so deeply impacts families in the every community.  

 

 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my 

 hand and caused the Seal of Chester County to be 

fixed this 16th Day of September, in the Year of our 

Lord, Two Thousand, Twenty-Four. 

 

 

          

 Joe Branham  

 Chairman, Chester County Council 

 

 

 

 

 

Attest: _________________________ 

Kristie Donaldson 

Clerk to Council   





   JC                  Chester County Planning Commission Minutes July 16, 2024                                            1 
 

Chester County Planning Commission Minutes  

July 16, 2024 

 

1. Call to Order – Chairman Raines called meeting to order. 

 

Quorum Established: Chairman Robert Raines, Vice Chairman Azzie Lee Hill, Commissioners Nancy 

Walley, Marvin Grant, and Shawn Hough present. Israel Bunting Sr. present but unable to vote due 

to training required, with Commissioner Douglas Josey absent with previous notification.   

Staff: Mike Levister and Jaime Chappell 

 

2. Approval of Agenda – Commissioner Grant motioned to approve, second by Vice Chairman Hill. 

Vote 5-0 to approve. 

 

3. Approval of Minutes from June 18, 2024, Meeting – Chairman Raines motioned to approve, second 

by Commissioner Walley. Vote 4-0 to approve. 

 

4. New Business  

a. CCLDV24-06 David Kost requests a Private Rural Community Drive for Tax Map # 133-00-00-178-
000 located off Harmony Church Road, Edgemoor, SC 29712.  

 
Chairman Raines stated Mr. Kost you present tonight. You step to, you have anything you feel like you 
need say or as far as this goes, as why you're requesting this. Could you step to the podium please state 
your name and your address. 

 
David Kost stated he lives at 4061 Berkshire Heights, Fort Mill, South Carolina 29708. In what we're 

looking to do is honestly get further away from Fort Mill, which is now basically just South Charlotte. So, 

we're trying to create a spot where we can have my family. My uncle is actually here from Michigan. 

He's looking to have a spot down here that he can bring my grandmother who's 92. My mother lives in 

Fort Mill.  

 
Commissioner Walley stated excuse me, can you speak closer to the mic. 

 

Mr. Kost stated oh I’m sorry. I can hear me, must be coming this way.  

 

Chairman Raines stated there’s a lot of feedback.  

 

Commissioner Walley stated, and the air is right behind us.  

 

Mr. Kost stated I gotcha. Yeah. So, we're looking to find a place for our family to go. So, we wanted to 

put the road in so that we'd be able to have different parcels for my uncle, for my in laws, for my wife, 

and then for my kids eventually, so we can have a place outside of the city. Just to have a little bit more 

space. 

 



   JC                  Chester County Planning Commission Minutes July 16, 2024                                            2 
 

Chairman Raines asked were there any questions for the applicant. Okay, it’s pretty straightforward. He 

owns the property. Just have access to it a little bit deeper. 

 
Chairman Raines motioned to approve, second by Commissioner Grant. Vote 5-0 to approve. 

 

b. CCMA24-11 Timothy McWatters request a portion of (.566 acres) Tax Map #154-00-00-007-000 
located at 3580 Catawba River Road, Fort Lawn, SC 29714 to be rezoned from Agricultural District 
(AG) to Rural Two District (R2).   

 

Chairman Raines stated Mr. McWatters are you present tonight.  Can you step to the podium and tell us 

anything you feel like is relevant to your request? 

 

Timothy McWatters stated the main landowner is David Wilson and we're friends, neighbors. I do work 

for them, equipment work, and just looking for a little bit more room to spread my wings and it helps 

him out also because it squares off his pasture area and has no particular reason, no plans to do 

anything crazy or anything. 

 

Chairman Raines stated just cleaning up the property lines a little bit.  

 

Commissioner Grant motioned to approve, second by Commissioner Hough. Vote 5-0 to approve. 

 

Chairman Raines stated the way this works for you is County Council has to approve it. So, it'd be three 

readings. Follow up with the staff if you're interested in coming to their meetings. They will approve it 

by proclamation. I think they call it now probably, but they may discuss it, you know they won't let you 

present anything to them. But they have to formally approve is the way that works. If you want to find 

out when those meetings are, check with staff.  

 
5.   Comments/Discussion  

Chairman Raines stated thank you, pretty much everything on the agenda tonight. And staff you have 

anything for us, anything coming up. 

Planning Director Mike Levister stated they have till Friday. 

Chairman Raines stated they have till Friday for the next meeting period.  

 

6. Adjourn Chairman Raines motioned to adjourn, seconded by Commissioner Grant. Vote 5-0 to 

adjourn. Time 6:37 PM. 

 



   JC                  Chester County Planning Commission Minutes July 16, 2024                                            3 
 

Notice of Meeting: Public Notices providing time, date, and place for this meeting were posted in the 
Chester County Government Complex, Chester County Court House, and published in the June 26, 2024, 
The Chester News and Reporter. All properties were also posted.  

 










































